Kent Metzger

From: Kent Metzger

Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 2:17 PM

To: Phillip Holthaus

Subject: RE: Dennis Lab Schools - BFW Structural Inspections Proposal

The afternoon of April 19" works well for us

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 2:15 PM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Subject: RE: Dennis Lab Schools - BFW Structural Inspections Proposal

Kent,

We have discussing timing of our inspections and wanted your opinion. We can see advantages of inspecting at
least the inside of these schools when they are not occupied with students in order to stay out of the way of day-to-day
activities and ensure we can visually get our eyes an all walls & floors, etc. | assume that you might still require us to
have an escort or at least someone to have doors unlocked during our investigation and re-locked when we are done.
Does this sound like a good option to you? If so, are there any early-out days or school holidays coming up that we could
make out visit on those days?

Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE

Structural Engineer / Project Manager
Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61l.org>

Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 1:08 PM

To: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Subject: RE: Dennis Lab Schools - BFW Structural Inspections Proposal

WARNING: External sender. Do not click links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.
Any idea about when?

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 2:26 PM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps6l.org>

Subject: RE: Dennis Lab Schools - BFW Structural Inspections Proposal

Kent, thank you for the update. | will look at our upcoming schedule and get back in touch with you.
Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE

Structural Engineer / Project Manager
Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.



From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps6l.org>

Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2023 2:05 PM

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
Phillip,

I am in the process of getting you a Purchase Order number. | will sign and return your proposal with issuance of the
PO. Please schedule the site visit for your earliest convenience.

Thanks,

Reat 4. Wetzgen

Dir. of Buildings and Grounds
Decatur Public Schools #61
Buildings & Grounds Department
400 East Cerro Gordo

Decatur, IL 62523

Office — 217-362-3531

Cell —217-413-3586

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 23, 2023 6:29 AM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps6l.org>

Subject: Dennis Lab Schools - BFW Structural Inspections Proposal

Kent,
Please see the attached proposal and let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE

Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.
Structural Engineer / Project Manager

907 Arrow Road, Suite 2

Champaign, IL 61821

217-530-4283 phone

217-530-4279 direct
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Kent Metzger

From: Kent Metzger

Sent: Thursday, April 27, 2023 2:51 PM

To: Phillip Holthaus

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab Schools - BFW Structural Inspections Proposal

We probably need to do the work sooner than later. Can we schedule the work for an afternoon next week? If you
need to look into an area which may disturb the occupants, it can be done after dismissal for the day.

Reut 4. Wetzger

Dir. of Buildings and Grounds
Decatur Public Schools #61
Buildings & Grounds Department
400 East Cerro Gordo

Decatur, IL 62523

Office —217-362-3531

Cell - 217-413-3586

Get Qutlook for i0S

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 27, 2023 2:47:05 PM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61l.org>

Subject: RE: Dennis Lab Schools - BFW Structural Inspections Proposal

Kent,

Are there any other dates that work well for you coming up so we can get this on our calendar?
Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE

Structural Engineer / Project Manager
Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

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
activities and ensure we can visually get our eyes on all walls & floors, etc. | assume that you might still require us to
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

Sent: Thursday, April 27, 2023 2:47 PM

To: Kent Metzger

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

1



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

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dpsbl.org>

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

| am in the process of getting you a Purchase Order number. 1 will sign and return your proposal with issuance of the
PO. Please schedule the site visit for your earliest convenience.

Thanks,

Reat 4. Metzgen

Dir. of Buildings and Grounds
Decatur Public Schools #61
Buildings & Grounds Department
400 East Cerro Gordo

Decatur, IL 62523

Office —217-362-3531

Cell —-217-413-3586

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
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any hard copies of this transmission. Thank you. Decatur Public School District 61, Decatur, lllinois.
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March 23, 2023

Decatur Public Schools District 61
101 W Cerro Good St

Decatur, IL 62523

Attention: Kent Metzger

Reference: Dennis Lab Mosaic & Kaleidoscope School Structural Inspections
1499 W. Main St. and 520 W Wood St.
Decatur, IL 62522

Dear Mr. Metzger,

We are pleased to propose the following Agreement for providing structural engineering services for the above
referenced project. This proposal will remain open for acceptance for 60 days from the date above.

It is our understanding that there are two schools that need a structural inspection. The original Mosaic school
was built in 1910 with additions/renovations in 1927, 1954, 1974, and 2004. |t maxes out at three stories tall
and is roughly 45,000 sf. The original Kaleidoscope school was built in 1914 with additions/renovations in 1974,
1994, and 2004. The following proposed scope and fee assume that we will have access to existing drawings for
both buildings that can be used in our report to designate specific locations of deteriorations. If existing drawings
cannot be provided, additional fees may be required in order to create reference floor plans if found pertinent
to the school districts needs in our report deliverable.

SCOPE OF SERVICES
BFW will provide the following structural engineering scope for this project.
- Provide a site visit to each school to visually access the interior and exterior of each school structure.
- Beescorted by building maintenance employee(s) to any specific locations of concern that staff has seen
or felt (vibrations).
- Take photos of any deteriorations
- Compile a stamped report of our findings and professional opinions/recommendations for remediation
or next steps.

The following scope is not included in the proposed fee.
- Designed and detailed fixes to any discovered deteriorations
- Destructive material testing
- 3d scanning of buildings or portions of buildings
- Drone HD video of exterior walls at higher elevations

The proposed fee and scope assume only visual inspections of readily available spaces of the schools. Exterior
inspections will be limited to what can be seen from the ground and roof is roof access is given. If we discover
portions of the building that need further investigation like drone scanning, 3d scanning, or material testing,
then these will be additional services and can be provided by a future negotiated fee.

www.bfwengineers.com

Paducah, KY | Murray, KY | Lexington, KY | Marion, IL | Champaign, IL I Springfield, IL | St. Louis, MO | Cape Girardeau, MO | Lewisburg, TN



BACON | FARMER | WORKMAN

ENGINEERING & TESTING, INC.

BFW

ENGINEERING COMPENSATION
Compensation for these services will be billed as a lump sum fee of $19,000.00.

We are looking forward to working with you on this project and please feel free to contact us with any
guestions at (217)530-4283.

Sincerely,
Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.

ZY

Phillip M. Holthaus, PE, SE
Professional Structural Engineer

Authorization to Proceed:

Structural Engineering Services
Dennis Lab Mosaic & Kaleidoscope School Structural Inspections
Proposal Date: March 23, 2023

Signature Date

Printed Name

Page 2 of 2



Kent Metzger

=]
From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 7:10 AM
To: Kent Metzger
Subject: Dennis Lab - School Visit this Week & Drawings
Kent,

| would like to make a site visit tomorrow (Tuesday May 9") is that works for your schedule. It would be very
helpful to have any existing drawings of the building whether original or a later renovation that at least shows the floor
plan so we can use that for reference when completing our report. If you do not have access to the drawings, let me
know if | should contact BLDD to see if they have any assuming they might have provided services at these school in the
past. My goal would be to at least get through one school tomorrow. If tomorrow works, do you have a preference as to
which one | could visit first?

Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE

Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.
Structural Engineer / Project Manager

907 Arrow Road, Suite 2

Champaign, IL 61821

217-530-4283 phone

217-530-4279 direct
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named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you have received this e-mail |
and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliai
contents of this information is strictly prohibited.




Kent Metzger i}

e S RS e = i
From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 4:.04 AM
To: Kent Metzger
Cc: Anna Marie Ignacio; Heath Pederson
Subject: Dennis Lab Schools
Kent,

While you were out of the office last week, | did get in contact with BLDD and get some floor plans of the two
schools to aid in our inspections and reports. If we can get something scheduled this week, | am at a conference Monday
through Wednesday and currently unavailable on Thursday, but Anna Marie and Heath might be available to make a site
visit during those days if needed. | am rather open the following week. Let me know what works best for you and we will
try to get something coordinated this week or next.

Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE

Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.
Structural Engineer / Project Manager

907 Arrow Road, Suite 2

Champaign, IL 61821

217-530-4283 phone

217-530-4279 direct
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this email in error please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are
named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you have received this e-mail |
and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in relial
contents of this information is strictly prohibited.




Kent Metzger

From;
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Phillip Holthaus <phelthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Monday, May 15, 2023 7:25 AM

Kent Metzger

Automatic reply: Dennis Lab Schools

[ will be out of the office Monday May 15th through Wednesday May 17th for Strategic Planning Conferences. Emall responses will be delayed.
If you need immaediate assistance, please call the office at (217)530-4283.




Kent Metzger }

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2023 11:48 AM

To: Kent Metzger

Cc: Anna Marie Ignacio; Heath Pederson

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab Schools

Great. Thank you.

Get Outlook for Android

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2023 11:44:35 AM

To: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Cc: Anna Marie Ignacio <amignacio@bfwengineers.com>; Heath Pederson <hpederson@hbfwengineers.com>
Subject: RE: Dennis Lab Schools

WARNING: External sender. Do not click links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.
The kids will be present for a very short time on 5/30 and completely gone on 5/31

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2023 9:09 AM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Cc: Anna Marie Ignacio <amignacio@bfwengineers.com>; Heath Pederson <hpederson@bfwengineers.com>
Subject: RE: Dennis Lab Schools

Kent,

We will hold both of those days for these two school inspections so if we don’t get finished up on the 30", we
can do so on the 31°'. Am | correct that students will not be present on these days?

Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE
Structural Engineer / Project Manager
Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 7:25 AM

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
Can we do 5/30 and/or 5/31?



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

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 4:04 AM

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



Kent Metzger o

From:
Sent:

To:
Subject: -

Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Friday, May 26, 2023 4:05 PM

Kent Metzget

Automatic reply: Inspections Next Week

[ will be out of the office Friday May 26th. Email responses will be defayed. If you need immediate assistance, please calf the office at (217)530-

4283.




Kent Metzger

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 6:54 AM

To: Kent Metzger

Subject: Re: Inspections Next Week

Okay, thank you

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Sent: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 6:46:22 AM

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
Ok. We will meet you there. Park wherever you find a spot

Get Outlook for i0S

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 6:21:06 AM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Subject: Re: Inspections Next Week

Kent, | will be at the Mosaic School at 7:15 am. Where should | park? Should | call your cell when | arrive?

Thanks,
Phillip

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Sent: Friday, May 26, 2023 4:04:34 PM

To: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Cc: Anna Marie Ignacio <amignacio@bfwengineers.com>
Subject: Re: Inspections Next Week

WARNING: External sender. Do not click links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.

Let’s start at the Mosaic campus. We start at 6:00 so anytime time after that. I'll have someone escort you. My
maintenance foreman and mason are knowledgeable about some structural issues so they can meet too. Let me know
what works for you.

My cell is (217) 413-3586.

Get Qutlook for iOS




From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Sent: Friday, May 26, 2023 3:25:04 PM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Cc: Anna Marie Ignacio <amignacio@bfwengineers.com>
Subject: Inspections Next Week

Kent,

Do you have a preference for which school we start at Tuesday morning? How early can we get started? Can | have your
cell number if needed? If you not be present when we start, how will be check in at the first school?

Thanks,
Phillip Holthaus

Get Outlook for Android

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This transmission is intended and restricted for use by the above addressee only. It may
contain confidential and/or privileged information exempt from disclosure under federal or state law. In the event some
other person or entity receives this transmission, said recipient is hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or
duplication of this transmission or its contents is prohibited. If you should receive this transmission in error, please
notify us immediately by replying to this e-mail or calling (217) 362-3000, delete the file from your system, and destroy
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




Friday, June 2, 2023 at 10:26:01 Central Daylight Time

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School

Date: Thursday, June 1, 2023 at 9:54:26 AM Central Daylight Time
From: Denise Swarthout

To: Bryan Bridge

Attachments: image001.png, image002.jpg, image003.png
Hi Bryan — here’s the information | have to share at the moment, we hope to have more info to share soon:

Out of an abundance of caution, we are temporarily closing the two Dennis Lab School campuses following an
analysis from a structural engineer. We are looking to get a second opinion this week, but for the moment we
are asking all staff at the two Dennis Lab School campuses to work from home or at an alternate location
through Monday, June 5.

Denise Swarthout

Chief Communications Officer
Decatur Public Schools
217.855.3639

From: Bryan Bridge <bpbridge@sbgtv.com>
Date: Thursday, June 1, 2023 at 9:38 AM

To: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Subject: Dennis Lab School

Good morning Denise,

| am just seeking a bit more information on the Dennis Lab School closing and confirming details I've seen in
other articles.

Why did the district temporarily close Dennis Lab School?

Any timeline or date that you plan on reopening it?

I’'ve seen something about an infrastructure problem, can you confirm exactly what it was?

If somebody came out to check it, when was that?

Thank you!

Bryan Bridge

Decatur Journalist

Email: bpbridge@sbgtv.com
Cell: (21 7)293—4999

Mgl CAJ23

Pagelof1
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Friday, June 2, 2023 at 10:26:37 Central Daylight Time

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 8:20:35 PM Central Daylight Time
From: Denise Swarthout

To: Scarlett Ohara

Attachments: image001.png, image002.png, image003.png, image004.png, image005.png, image006.png,
Outlook-fmmlsOez.png, Outlook-mwywpsO0l.png

It is, and we will communicate with affected families as necessary, pending the second engineering opinion.
Get Outlook for iOS

From: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 8:18:34 PM

To: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

Is any tutoring scheduled to be held there?

Scarlett O'Hara | Multimedia Journalist

OFFICE: 217.356.8333

NEWSROOM: 217.373.3650

WCIA 3 | WCIX 49 | WCIA.COM | 509 S. NEIL ST., CHAMPAIGN, IL 61820
sohara@wcia.com T TTTTTTTTToTTTommTmmmmmmmmmmmmTTes

(A).é M@ WCHACom ER

WCIA-TV and WCIX-TV do not discriminate in advertising contracts on the basis of race, ethnicity or gender and further require in the performance of all WCIA-TV and WCIX-TV
advertising agreements each party not discriminate on the basis of race or ethnicity.

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are the property of Nexstar Inc., are confidential, and are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom this email is addressed and/or as
indicated in the applicable file. If you are not one of the named recipient(s) or otherwise have reason to believe that you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and delete this
message immediately from your computer. Any other use, retention, dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited.

From: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 8:17 PM

To: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

Correct.
Get Outlook for iOS

From: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 7:41:55 PM

To: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

One more question - yesterday was the last day of school, right? So, students won't be affected by the
closure at this point?

Scarlett O'Hara | Multimedia Journalist

OFFICE: 217.356.8333

NEWSROOM: 217.373.3650

WCIA 3 | WCIX 49 | WCIA.COM | 509 S. NEIL ST., CHAMPAIGN, IL 61820
sohara@wcia.com T TTTTTTTTTTToTTTommmmmmmmmmmmmmemes
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
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 3:48 PM

To: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

No, | don’t have those available.

Denise Swarthout

Chief Communications Officer
Decatur Public Schools
217.855.3639

From: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>
Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 3:47 PM

To: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

Are you able to share the findings from his analysis?

Get Outlook for i0S

From: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 3:44:59 PM

To: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

We requested the analysis from a structural engineer this spring, but yesterday was the first availability on his
schedule to come out and do the analysis.

Denise Swarthout

Chief Communications Officer
Decatur Public Schools
217.855.3639

Page 2 of 6
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From: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>
Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 3:44 PM

To: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

When was the first opinion sought?

Get Qutlook for iOS

From: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 3:35:27 PM

To: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

We are looking to get a second opinion this week, but for the moment we are asking all staff at the two
Dennis Lab School campuses to work from home or at an alternate location through Monday.

Denise Swarthout

Chief Communications Officer
Decatur Public Schools
217.855.3639

From: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>
Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 3:22 PM

To: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

Thanks for getting back to me. Are you able to clarify what the structural concerns are and how long the
campuses will be closed for?

Get Outlook for i0S

From: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 3:20:49 PM

To: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>

Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

Page 3 of 6
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Hi Scarlett! We’re not available for on-camera interviews at this time, the statement is all the information we
have to share.

Denise Swarthout

Chief Communications Officer
Decatur Public Schools
217.855.3639

From: Scarlett Ohara <SOhara@wcia.com>
Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 2:33 PM

To: Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Subject: Re: Dennis Lab School Update

Hi,

We'll be in town covering this today. Would you and/or the principal of Dennis Lab School be available
for a quick interview? | can also be reached at 773-603-9339 (cell). Thank you!

Best,
Scarlett O'Hara

Scarlett O'Hara | Multimedia Journalist

OFFICE: 217.356.8333

NEWSROOM: 217.373.3650

WCIA 3 | WCIX 49 | WCIA.COM | 509 S. NEIL ST., CHAMPAIGN, IL 61820
sohara@wcia.com

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
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 2:01 PM
Subject: Dennis Lab School Update

Page 4 of 6



Out of an abundance of caution, Decatur Public Schools is temporarily closing the two Dennis Lab School
campuses while we further assess structural concerns with the two buildings. We continue to do our due
diligence, as we take proactive steps to ensure the safety of students and staff at all DPS schools.

Denise Swarthout

Chief Communications Officer
Decatur Public Schools
217.855.3639

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This transmission is intended and restricted for use by the above addressee only. It
may contain confidential and/or privileged information exempt from disclosure under federal or state law. In
the event some other person or entity receives this transmission, said recipient is hereby notified that any
dissemination, distribution, or duplication of this transmission or its contents is prohibited. If you should
receive this transmission in error, please notify us immediately by replying to this e-mail or calling (217) 362-
3000, delete the file from your system, and destroy any hard copies of this transmission. Thank you. Decatur
Public School District 61, Decatur, lllinois.

CAUTION: This message was sent from outside the Nexstar organization. Please do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender.

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
Public School District 61, Decatur, Illinois.

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
contain confidential and/or privileged information exempt from disclosure under federal or state law. In the event
some other person or entity receives this transmission, said recipient is hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution, or duplication of this transmission or its contents is prohibited. If you should receive this transmission in
error, please notify us immediately by replying to this e-mail or calling (217) 362-3000, delete the file from your
system, and destroy any hard copies of this transmission. Thank you. Decatur Public School District 61, Decatur,
Illinois.

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
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From: Angela Brown

To: Phillip Holthaus

Subject: RE: BFW - COI & W9

Date: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 2:38:00 PM
Attachments: BFW Enaineering & Testing - Aareement 3.23.23.pdf
Phillip,

Attached is the signed agreement. You will receive a PO once | get the requisition submitted to our purchasing department. |
received your W9 and as soon as | receive the certificate of insurance, | will get the requisition submitted.
Thanks.

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 10:21 AM

To: Angela Brown <ABrown@dps61.org>

Subject: RE: BFW - COI & W9

Angie,

You may have received this direct from Peel & Holland, but | wanted to send to you as well. Do you need anything
else from us? Do you have a copy of the PO or contract for our records?

Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE
Structural Engineer / Project Manager
Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.

From: Phillip Holthaus
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 5:46 AM

To: abrown@dps61.org
Subject: RE: BFW - COI & W9

Angie, please see the attached W9 form. | hope to have the COI to you by the end of the week. Thanks.

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE
Structural Engineer / Project Manager
Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.

From: Phillip Holthaus
Sent: Tuesday, May 23, 2023 7:38 PM

To: abrown@dps6l.org
Subject: BFW - COI & W9

Angie,
| received your message last week and have requested the Certificate of Insurance and the W9 form.

Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE

Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.
Structural Engineer / Project Manager

907 Arrow Road, Suite 2

Champaign, IL 61821

217-530-4283 phone

217-530-4279 direct


mailto:abrown@dps61.org
mailto:pholthaus@bfwengineers.com
mailto:abrown@dps61.org
mailto:abrown@dps61.org

BFW BACON | FARMER | WORKMAN
ENGINEERING & TESTING, INC.

Decatur Public Schools District 61
101 W Cerro Good St

Decatur, 1L 62523

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
was built in 1910 with additions/renovations in 1927, 1954, 1974, and 2004. It maxes out at three stories tall
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

- Beescorted by building maintenance employee(s} to any specific locations of concern that staff has seen
or felt (vibrations).

- Take photos of any deteriorations

- Compile a stamped report of our findings and professional oplmons/recommendat:ons for remediation

or next steps.

The foilowing scope is not included in the proposed fee.
- Designed and detailed fixes to any discovered deteriorations
- Destructive material testing
- 3dscanning of buildings or portions of buildings
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

Paducah, KY | Murray, KY | Lexington, KY | Marion, IL l Champaign, IL l Springfield, IL | St. Louis, MO | Cape Girardean, MO | Lewisburg, TN
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BFW BACON | FARMER | WORKMAN
‘ - ENGINEERING & TESTING, INC.

ENGINEERING COMPENSATION
Compensation for these services will be billed as a lump sum fee of $19,000.00.

We are looking forward to working with you on this project and please feel free to contact us with any
questions at (217)530-4283.

Sincerely,
Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.

Py St

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
Sighature ‘ Date

Yeir A. Merzeea
Printed Name

‘—D./t- oF ‘gtbas. d é/wuuag

Page2 of 2







f BACON | FARMER | WORKMAN
ENGINEERING & TESTENG, NG

MR MARCUMSE | @

www.bfwengineers.com » follow us: n =1 m @

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received
this email in error please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the

namead addresses you should not disseminale, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sendar immediately by e-mail if you have received this e-mail by mistake
and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified thal disclosing, copying, distributing or laking any action in reliance on the

contents of this information is stricily prohibited




From: Michael J. Fries

To: Michael Curry

Cc: Kyle T. Hannel; Alan D. Lukens

Subject: Decatur Public Schools- Structural Evaluations

Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 5:03:03 PM

Attachments: 20230531 [Kaleidoscope & Mosaic School Structural Evaluations SFA.pdf
Dr. Curry,

Thank you for contacting Klingner today regarding the need for structural evaluations at two school
buildings in your district. As discussed, our structural engineer Kyle Hannel will be onsite tomorrow
morning with Kent Metzger to perform the onsite visual evaluation. Two reports will be provided as
described in the scope of work found on the attached proposal. Please sign and return scanned
copy of this proposal. We are prioritizing this work and will have reports to you early next week.

Thank you again for contacting me. On behalf of Klingner, we look forward to working with you. If
you have any questions, please let me know.

Best,
Michael

Michael J. Fries, AlA, LEED AP
Architecture Department Director
Klingner & Associates, P.C.

The Molengracht Plaza
604 Liberty Street, Suite 125 | Pella, IA 50219
Office: 515.612.7402 | Cell: 641-629-9938

mfries@klingner.com | www.klingner.com

K Ll N G N E n “Striving to provide excellent services which

anticipate and meet the needs of our clients and
&ASSOCIATES,P.C. benefit the community”

Engineers * Architects ® Surveyors GALESBURS - QUINCY - CARBONDALE - BURLINGTON
PELLA - DAVENPORT - COLUMBIA - HANNIBAL
CONFIDENTIALITY: Thee inforasation corrbatned in this comail mesage Js privilgged and £ or condidentisl, and Ts oaly Intemded for Bhe wie of he addreses,

I o are et e ralendied recipient, please do ned read, distribute, reprodeee or wee this emad] message {or aftscharends ) and molily the sood of the mistaken
Irirasrission
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Short Form Agreement For Engineer/Architect/Surveying Services

KLINGNER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
604 Liberty Street, Suite 125, Pella, IA 50219 - 515.612.7402
www.klingner.com

Date 05/31/2023 Phase Manager (PM) KTH
Project Type 1001 Project Manager (PIC) MJF
(Office Code) Client Manager (Billing) MJF

PROJECT & SCOPE OF SERVICES:
Primary Company Contact

Client Decatur Public Schools #61 Project Contact Dr. Mike Curry, COO
Address 400 East Cerro Gordo City/State/Zip _Decatur, IL 62523
Phone 217-362-3021 Cell 217-827-0909 Email MCurry@dps61.org

Billing Contact (To be completed by Client) — Check box if identical to primary company contact [
Check box if you would NOT like to receive your invoice via email [J

Address Billing Contact
Phone Cell City/State/Zip
Email

Project Name DPS — Koleidoscope & Mosaic School Structural Evaluations
We (Klingner & Associates, P.C.) agree to provide to you (the Client) the following consulting, design, advisory, and/or surveying services:
Description and Location of Work:
-Site visit to Koleidoscope School and Mosaic School in Decatur lllinois to perform structural inspection and obtain
applicable field measurements existing building conditions. The focus of the structural inspections will be on the
exterior walls and parapets of the Koleidoscope School Building and the interior stair supports of the Mosaic School.
-Provide structural evaluation report documenting structural deficiency observations and providing attached photos.
-Provide additional structural evaluation report with recommendations for repairs for applicable structural deficiencies.
-Report will be seals by a licensed Structural Engineer in the state of IL and will be provided in .PDF format via email.
Not Included: Opinion of probable construction costs for repair/replacement; repair details/drawings; full building
inspection and report for portions of school building beyond the focus of the current evaluation.

Target Start Date:  06/01/2023 Target Completion Date: 06/08/2023
FEES AND EXPENSES: Our services will be charged on the following basis (check all that apply):
Hourly at Priority Service rate charges of Labor Cost Estimate $_6,000.00

staff members, plus all “Reimbursable Reimbursable Cost Estimate $  200.00

Expenses”. For planning purposes, the Consultant Cost Estimate § 0.00

estimated fees are: Total Project Cost Estimate  $ 6,200.00

Conditions encountered may result in higher or lower charges.

O Lump sum basis for the amount of $ O Plus reimbursable expenses
O A prepaid retainer of $ is required prior to start of work. Retainer will be applied to the final project invoice.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: Our agreement is subject to the General Terms and Conditions following this page, which
are a part of this agreement for our services. Our services do not include special inspections and structural tests as defined in Sections
1701 through 1715 of the International Building Code (IBC) unless specifically noted.

ACCEPTANCE: The above Scope of Services, Fees, and General Terms and Conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted. You

are authorized to do the work.

dby

Signature of Client Signature of Consultant
Senior Architect
Title Title
05/31/2023
Date of Acceptance Date of Signature
Project No.

Return signed copy, Keep one copy

&ASSOCIATES,P.C.
Date Revised 05/11/23

Engineers + Architects » Surveyors





GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
DEFINITIONS: The term Client shall be herein interpreted as the person, corporation, or public entity to which this contract is made. The term E/A/S is
any division of Klingner & Associates, P.C. providing the professional Engineering, Architectural, or Surveying services.

SCOPE OF SERVICES: Services are limited to those specifically listed; they do not include others not set forth or not listed which are expressly
excluded from the scope of the E/A/S's services unless separately provided in writing, including but not limited to special inspections and structural tests
as defined in Sections 1701 through 1715 of the International Building Code (IBC). The E/A/S assumes no responsibility to perform or provide any
services not specifically listed.

STANDARD OF PRACTICE: Services performed by the E/A/S under this agreement will be conducted in a manner consistent with that level of care
and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing in the same locality under similar conditions. No other representation,
expressed or implied, and no warranty or guarantee is included or intended in this agreement, or in any report, opinion, document or otherwise.

FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITY: The Client confirms that neither the E/A/S nor any of the E/A/S’s subconsultants or subcontractors has offered any
fiduciary service to the Client and no fiduciary responsibility shall be owed to the Client by the E/A/S or and of the E/A/S’s subconsultants or
subcontractors as a consequence or the E/A/S’s entering into this Agreement with the Client.

CHANGED CONDITIONS: This Agreement is based on conditions actually known by or disclosed to the E/A/S. If other conditions not originally known
or disclosed become known or disclosed, the E/A/S may require a renegotiation of appropriate portions of this Agreement (e.g., compensation or scope
of service).

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHERS: The Client shall furnish and grant permission to use, at the Client's expense, all information, requirements,
reports, data, surveys and instructions as defined in the Scope of Services of this Agreement. The E/A/S may use such information, requirements,
reports, data, surveys and instructions in performing its services and is entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof without independent
verifications or investigation.

UNAUTHORIZED CHANGES: In the event the Client, the Client's contractors or subcontractors, or anyone for whom the Client is legally liable makes or
permits to be made any changes to any reports, plans, specifications or other construction documents prepared by the E/A/S without obtaining the
E/A/S's prior written consent, the Client shall assume full responsibility for the results or consequences of such changes. Therefore the Client waives any
claim against the E/A/S and releases the E/A/S from any liability arising directly or indirectly from such unapproved changes whether or not known by the
E/A/S.

Change Orders: The Client agrees not to make any claim directly or indirectly against the E/A/S on the basis of professional negligence, breach of
contract, or otherwise with respect to the costs of approved Covered Change Orders unless the costs of such approved Covered Change Orders exceed
fifteen percent (15%) of Construction Cost, and then only for an amount in excess of such percentage. For purposes of this paragraph, the cost of
Covered Change Orders will not include any costs that Client would have incurred if the Covered Change Order work had been included originally
without any imprecision, incompleteness, error, omission, ambiguity, or inconsistency in the Contract Documents and without any other error or omission
of the E/A/S related thereto.

BETTERMENT: If, due to the E/A/S's negligence, a required item or component of the Project is omitted from the E/A/S's construction documents, the
E/A/S shall not be responsible for paying the cost required to add such item or component to the extent that such item or component would have been
required and included in the original construction documents. In no event will the E/A/S be responsible for any cost or expense that provides betterment
or upgrades or enhances the value of the Project.

COMPENSATION METHODS: The “Lump Sum” method includes compensation for the E/A/S’s services and services of outside the E/A/S’s, if any.
Appropriate amounts will be incorporated in the Lump Sum to account for labor, overhead, profit and may or may not include Reimbursable Expenses.
The “Standard Hourly Rate” method is an amount equal to the cumulative hours charged per each classification of employee, times a current Standard
Hourly Rate (revised annually on July 1st) for each applicable billing classification for all services performed on a Specific Project, plus Reimbursable
Expenses and outside the E/A/S charges, if any. The “Payroll Cost Times Multiplier” method is an amount equal to the cumulative hours charged per
each classification of employee, times a specified multiplier of the employee’s payroll cost. The “Payroll Cost” is defined as the salary and wage of an
employee plus the cost of customary and statutory benefits including, but not necessarily limited to, social security contributions, unemployment, health,
sick leave, vacation, workers' compensation, incentive and holiday pay applicable thereto. "Reimbursable Expenses" means the actual expenses
incurred directly or indirectly in connection with the work including but not limited to the following: transportation and subsistence, telephone and media
expenses, reproduction or printing, computer time, and outside the E/A/Ss.

PAYMENT: The E/A/S may invoice for its services and expenses monthly, based on the proportion of the actual work completed at the time of invoicing.
Payment due in 15 days. Interest charged at 1% per month on accounts over 30 days. A 3.5% convenience fee will be charged for electronic payments.
Please contact our office to pay electronically. Please return a copy of invoice with payment to assure proper credit. In addition, the Client agrees to pay
attorney fees, cost and collection expenses if incurred by the E/A/S to obtain payment. If payment request is passed on to a collection agency, the Client
agrees to pay the invoice amount and accrued interest, plus the fee of the collection agency. Any claim for payment will be brought in Adams County,
lllinois.

RISK ALLOCATION: The E/A/S’s liability to the Client for injury or damage to persons or property arising out of work performed for the Client and for
which liability may be found to rest upon the E/A/S, other than for professional errors, omissions or negligence will be limited to the E/A/S’s general
liability insurance coverage of $1,000,000.00.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: For any damage on account of professional errors, omissions or negligence will be limited to $100,000.00 or the fee,
whichever is less. In no event shall the E/A/S be liable for incidental or consequential damages. This provision is separable from the remainder of this
agreement to the extent inconsistent with law.

CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY: Client recognizes and expects that certain Change Orders may be required to be issued as the result in whole or
part of imprecision, incompleteness, errors, omissions, ambiguities, or inconsistencies in the Drawings, Specifications, and other design documentation
furnished by the E/A/S or in the other professional services performed or furnished by the E/A/S under this Agreement (“Covered Change

Orders”). Accordingly, Client agrees to budget a minimum of five percent (5%) of the total client’s construction contractor’s bid amount(s) for
contingencies.

DEFECTS IN SERVICE: The Client shall immediately report to the E/A/S any defects or suspected defects in the E/A/S's services of which the Client
becomes or should have become aware and allow the E/A/S to take measures to minimize the consequences of such a defect. Failure by the Client to
notify the E/A/S shall relieve the E/A/S of the costs of remedying the defects claimed above the sum such remedy would have cost had prompt
notification been given when such defects were or should have been first discovered.

ILLINOIS REVISED STATUTES COMPLIANCE: The Consultant and he/she and his/her principals have not been barred from signing this Agreement
as a result of a violation of Sections 33E-3 and 33E-4 of the Criminal Code of 1961 (Chapter 38 of the lllinois Revised Statutes).

KLINGNER
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TIME OF COMPLETION: The E/A/S will use its best efforts to complete the work by the date indicated in the schedule, but the E/A/S shall incur no
liability due to any delay for any reason and the Client’s obligation to pay fees and expenses shall not be affected by any delay. In addition, if any delay
increases the cost or time required by the E/A/S to perform its services in an orderly, professional and efficient manner, the E/A/S shall be entitled to a
reasonable and equitable adjustment in schedule and/or compensation.

OWNERSHIP OF DRAWINGS AND ELECTRONIC INFORMATION: Drawings, tracings, plats, specifications, CADD files, electronic information, and
other products produced by the E/A/S may be used in connection with the Client’s presently proposed project, but shall otherwise be the E/A/S’s
property and their use for any other project is not authorized. The Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to hold harmless and indemnify
the E/A/S from and against all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, and costs, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, arising out of or in any way
connected with maodification, translation, misinterpretation, misuse, or reuse by the Client or others of the machine readable information and data or
other electronic data which may be provided by the E/A/S under this Agreement. Contract Documents include both the sealed drawings and the
electronic files. If there is a conflict between the two, the sealed drawings will govern.

ACCEPTANCE PERIOD: CADD files shall have an acceptance period of 90 days. During this time, the Client can examine the electronic files and verify
their correctness. The E/A/S will remedy any errors discovered in the files during this period. Once the acceptance period ends, the Client has accepted
the files and takes responsibility for their ongoing maintenance.

OPINIONS OF PROBABLE COST: In providing opinions of probable cost, the Client understands that the E/A/S has no control over contractor’s costs
or the price of contractor’s labor, equipment or materials, or over the Contractor’s method of pricing, and that the opinions of probable cost provided
herein are to be made on the basis of the E/A/S’s qualifications and experience. The E/A/S makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as to the accuracy
of such opinions as compared to bid or actual costs.

HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS: Unless expressly stated in writing, the E/A/S does not provide assessments of the existence or
presence of any hazardous or other environmental conditions or environmental contaminants or materials (“Hazardous Environmental Conditions”).
Client shall inform the E/A/S of any and all known Hazardous Environmental Conditions before services are provided involving or affecting them. If
unknown Hazardous Environmental Conditions are encountered, the E/A/S will notify the Client and, as appropriate, government officials of them. The
E/A/S may without liability or reduction or delay of compensation due suspend services on the affected portion of the project until Client takes
appropriate action to abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous Environmental Condition. The E/A/S shall not be considered an “arranger”, “operator”,
“generator”, “transporter,” “owner,” or “responsible party” of or with respect to contaminants, materials, or substances: assumes no liability for correction
of any Hazardous Environmental Condition; and shall be entitled to payment or reimbursement of expenses, costs, or damages occasioned by
undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Conditions.

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES: Should the Client provide construction observation or review with either the Client’s representatives or a third party, the
E/A/S’s services under this Agreement will be considered to be completed upon completion and submittal of the Final Design or the services outlined in
the Scope of Work. It is understood and agreed that if the E/A/S’s Services under this Agreement do not include project observation, or review of the
Contractor’s performance, or other construction services, and that such services will be provided by the Client, then the Client assumes all responsibility
for interpretation of the Contract Documents and for construction observation or review and waives any claims against the E/A/S that may be in any way
connected thereto.

AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY: The E/A/S (1) does not guarantee the actual bids the Client will receive or the work of any Contractor or
Subcontractor, (2) has no authority to stop work by any Contractor or Subcontractor, (3) has no supervision or control as to the work or persons doing
the work, (4) does not have charge of the work, (5) is not responsible for safety in, on, or about the job site, and (6) does not have any control of the
safety or adequacy of any equipment, building component, scaffolding, supports, forms or other work aids. The E/A/S neither guarantees the
performance of any Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any Contractor’s failure to finish and perform its work in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

TERMINATION: This agreement may be terminated by either party on written notice. If terminated by either party (with or without cause), the Client
agrees to pay for all services and reimburse all expenses performed or incurred to and including the date written notice of termination is received by
either party.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION: Any claims or disputes made during design, construction or post-construction between the Client and the E/A/S shall be
submitted to non-binding mediation. The Client and the E/A/S agree to include a similar mediation agreement with all Contractors, Subcontractors, Sub
consultants, Suppliers and Fabricators, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between all parties.

BINDING EFFECT: This is the entire agreement. It may not be amended except in writing. It shall be binding on both the Client and the E/A/S and their
legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

INDEMNIFICATION: The Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the E/A/S, his or her officers, directors,
employees, agents and sub consultants from and against said damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs,
arising out of or in any way connected with the E/A/S’s providing emergency services under this Agreement, excepting only those damages, liabilities or
costs arising directly from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the E/A/S.

FAST TRACK/DESIGN-BUILD AND CONSTRUCTION: In consideration of the benefits to the Client of employing the “fast track” process (in which
some of the E/A/S’s design services overlap the construction work and/or are out of sequence with the traditional project performance or delivery
method), and in recognition of the inherent risks of fast tracking to the E/A/S which Client accepts, the Client waives all claims against the E/A/S for
design changes and modification of portions of the services already constructed due to the Client's decision to employ the fast track process. The Client
further agrees to compensate the E/A/S for all Additional Services required to modify, correct, or adjust the Construction Documents and coordinate
them in order to meet the Client's Project requirements because of the Client's knowing decision to construct the Project in a fast track manner.

RIGHT OF ENTRY: Client shall provide for E/A/S’s right to enter property owned by Client and/or others in order for E/A/S to fulfill the scope of service
for this Project. Client understands that use of exploration equipment may unavoidably cause damage, the correction of which is not the responsibility of
E/A/S.

BURIED UTILITIES: Client shall be responsible for designating the location of all utility lines and subterranean structures within the property lines of the
Project. Client agrees to waive any claim against the E/A/S and to defend, indemnify and hold harmless for any claim or liability for injury or loss arising
from the E/A/S or other persons encountering utilities or other manmade objects that were not called to the E/A/S’s attention or which were not properly
located on the plans furnished to the E/A/S. Client further agrees to compensate the E/A/S for any time or expenses incurred by the E/A/S in defense of
any such claim, in accordance with the E/A/S’s standard hourly per diem fee schedule and expense reimbursement policy.
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SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES

(Priority Services)
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2022 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023

Charges for professional services for projects which are not based upon a percentage of construction
cost, cost plus fixed fee, lump sum fee, or payroll cost, shall be based upon the following per diem rates
plus reimbursable expenses:

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Classification Rate Per Hour
O T 02 i 0 1= o | SRR $85.00
T-1 1= 31T =T o T SR $80.00
T-2 1= 31T =T o T SR $93.00
T-3 TeChNICIAN ... e $105.00
T-4 TEeChNICIAN TV ...t et e see e e e e nneeas $117.00
T-5 JLIC=Te] T aTToTE= o T S $145.00
T-6 TeChNICAl SUPEIVISOI......uviiiiie ittt e e e e e e eas $164.00
A-1 AdMINISTrative AIAE .......oooiiiiii e $73.00
A-2 Administrative ASSISTANT..........ooiiiiiii e $98.00
A-3 Administrative Manager ..........ooeeiiiii e $158.00
A-4 GENEIal MANAGET .....co ittt e st e e st e e s nteeete e e snteeenneeenneeeas $161.00
P-1 Assistant Engineer/Architect/Surveyor/Planner ...........cccccooeiiiiiiiieniieeeee $132.00
P-2 Intern Engineer/Architect/Surveyor/Planner............ccooiiiii i $149.00
P-3 Engineer/Architect/Surveyor/Planner ..o $170.00
P-4 Project Engineer/Architect/Surveyor/Planner ... $186.00
P-5 Senior Engineer/Architect/Surveyor/Planner ... $199.00
P-6 Proj./Dept./Branch Manager, Chief Eng./Architect/Surveyor/Planner ................ $233.00
P-7 Director of Engineering/Architecture/Surveying/Planning.............ccccocceeeiinnnes $258.00

P-8 Principal, Partner, Manager of Engineering/Architecture/Surveying/Planning ... $269.00

Court testimony by principal or other registered professional will be charged at the rate of $3,000.00 per
day plus reimbursable expenses.

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES (partial listing)

Mileage (may adjust due to fuel fluctuations) ..o $ 0.655 per mile
Reproduction (i.e. Prints, Copies, Plans, €tC) .........cooeiiiiie e At Cost + 15%
Computer Aided Design/Drafting .........cooueeie i $ 17.00 per Hour
Global Positioning & Robotic Survey EqQUIipmMeNt............ooooiiiiiiiiiiee e $ 30.00 per Hour
BD SCANNET ...ttt ettt e e et e e e et e e et e e e e e e e ate e e e e eteeeaateeeteeeaaeeaas $220.00 per Hour
Long Distance & Cell Calls, Subsistence & Lodging ........cccceeeveeiiiiiiiiieeeee e At Cost

SPECial CONSUIANTS ...ooiiiiiiie it e e e e e st e e e sntee e e e anreeeaeas At Cost + 15%
NON-TEUSADIE SUPPIIES ....eeieiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e e e e nnae e e e eneee At Cost + 15%

LABOR RATE 38 effective 07-01-22
Priority Services

www klingnercom  Quincy, IL * Galesburg, IL * Carbondale, IL * Burlington, A * Davenport, IA * Pella, IA ¢ Columbia, MO * Hannibal, MO






				2023-05-31T16:56:59-0500

		Michael Fries










From: Michael J. Fries

To: Michael Curry; Kent Metzger

Cc: Kyle T. Hannel; Alan D. Lukens

Subject: Decatur School District- Kaleidoscope School Structural Evaluation Report
Date: Thursday, June 8, 2023 1:54:57 PM

Dr. Curry,

Attached, please find our structural evaluation observation report for the Kaleidoscope School in
Decatur, IL. Per your request, this observation report includes our recommendations for the
conditions we observed in the observation report. The text of the observation report remains
unchanged, however we have inserted our recommendations in bold text.

If you have any questions, please let me know.

Thank you again for this opportunity for Klingner and Associates to work with the Decatur School
District.

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
&GASSOCIATES,P.C. benefit the community”

Engineers = Architects = Surveyors GALESBURG - QUINCY - CARBONDALE - BURLINGTON
PELLA - DAVENPORT - COLUMBIA - HANNIBAL
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From: Kent Metzger

To: Denise Swarthout

Subject: Fwd: Decatur School inspections

Date: Monday, June 12, 2023 4:30:17 PM

Attachments: Dennis Lab Kaleidoscope - Minimum Recommended Unoccupied Space.pdf
Get Qutlook for iOS

From: Michael J. Fries <mfries@klingner.com>

Sent: Monday, June 5, 2023 4:37:47 PM

To: Michael Curry <mcurry@dps61.org>; Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>
Cc: Kyle T. Hannel <khannel@klingner.com>; Alan D. Lukens <adl@klingner.com>
Subject: RE: Decatur School inspections

Dr. Curry and Kent,

Structural Engineer Kyle Hannel from Klingner made a visit to two Decatur School District buildings
last week. We were asked to provide a second opinion on specific structural conditions at each
building. Below, please find a brief summary of each building provide by Kyle Hannel (I have copied
Kyle on this email). He is in the process of completing a formal report that should be sent to you on
Wednesday. Our observations below were limited to what could be visually seen without making
any openings in the existing construction. There is the possibility of hidden defects we could not
observe.

Kaleidoscope School Building Inspection Summary: The exterior multi-wythe brick walls of
the original 3-story school building built in 1913 has walls that are bowing and leaning near

the tops of the walls and parapets. The worst of the bowing and leaning is on the top of the
north end of the east walls. The exterior facade decorative terre cotta pieces on the exterior
side of the parapets also appear to be leaning and shifting. The worst of the terre cotta
pieces shifting appears to be on the north end of the east wall. From observations in the
attic space, it does not appear the exterior walls are tied back to the roof structure on the
east and west side of the buildings. It further appears the roof framing is only pocketed into
the walls on the north and south walls with no real attachment. We could not visually verify
the direction of floor framing due to the structural framing being hidden. We assume due to
the direction of the floor spans, it is likely that the east and west exterior walls are not tied
back to the floor level structural framing either. It is possible that the 2-story building
additions on the east and west side of the 1913 building may be helping brace the 1913

building and prevent some of the east and west wall deflection and bowing below the 2nd
floor. A floor plan drawing was sent to us last week showing areas of the interior and
exterior highlighted for no occupancy at this time (see attached). From my observations, |
would continue to have the unoccupied interior and exterior spaces of those floor plans
highlighted remain unoccupied until repairs or temporary stabilization can be provided. |
will provide more details and photos of the observations in a follow up inspection report. |
will also try to have a report summarizing some possible recommendations for some of the
deteriorated items observed.
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Mosaic School Building inspection Summary: The interior 3-story stair on the north side of
the original school building (built over 100 years ago) appears to have wood framing

superstructure that is excessively deflecting and sagging in areas. It appears the stairs have
columns, headers, and stringers that are in need of repair or replacement. While the worst
of the deflection and sagging appears to be limited to the top two levels of stairs and
landings, from my observations of the severity of deflection and out of plumbness of the
supports | would recommend the following at this time. This main interior stair and landings
associated with this interior stair and any rooms that can only be accessed by this stair
remain unoccupied until repairs or temporary stabilization can be provided. Depending on
the number of other stairs in the building that can be used as a means of emergency egress,
a code review may be required to see if teachers/staff can still access other portions of the
school building without being able to have access to this main stair. | will provide more
details and photos of the observations in a follow up inspection report. | will also try to have
a report summarizing some possible recommendations for some of the deteriorated items
observed.

If you have any questions, please let us know.

Best,

Michael

Michael J. Fries, AIA, LEED AP
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

K LI N G N E n “Striving to provide excellent services which

anticipate and meet the needs of our clients and
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From: Mike Curry

To: Michael Curry

Subject: KLINGNER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Date: Friday, June 2, 2023 11:51:29 AM
Attachments: KLINGNER & ASSOCIATES, P.C..pdf

Sent from my iPhone
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Short Form Agreement For Engincer/Architect/Surveving Services

KLINGNER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
604 Liberty Street, Suite 125, Pella, 1A 50219 - 515.612.7402
www.klingner.com

Date 05/31/2023 Phase Manager (PM)  KTH S
Project Type 1001 Project Manager (PIC) _MJF o
(Office Code) Client Manager (Billing) _MJF

PROJECT & SCOPE OF SERVICES:
Primary Company Contact

Client Decatur Public Schools #61 Project Contact _Dr. Mike Curry, COO o
Address 400 East Cerro Gordo City/State/Zip Decatur, IL 62523
Phone 217-362-3021 Cell 217-827-0909 Email MCurry@dps61.org

Billing Contact (To be completed by Client) — Check box if identical to primary company contact O
Check box if you would NOT like to receive your invoice via email (]

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
-Provide additional structural evaluation report with recommendations for repairs for applicable structural deficiencies
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

© Hourly at Priority Service rate charges of Labor Cost Estimate  $_6,000.00 -
staff members, plus all “Reimbursable Reimbursable Cost Estimate $  200.00
Expenses”. For planning purposes, the Consultant Cost Estimate  $ 0.00
estimated fees are: Total Project Cost Estimate  § 6,200.00

Conditions encountered may result in higher or lower charges.
] Lump sum basis for the amount of $
[0 A prepaid retainer of $ is required prior to start of work. Retainer will be applied to the final project invoice

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: Our agreement is subject to the General Terms and Conditions following this page, which
are a part of this agreement for our services. Our services do not include special inspections and structural tests as defined in Sections

1701 through 1715 of the International Building Code (IBC) unless specifically noted
ACCEPTANCE: The above Scope of Services, Fees, and General Terms and Conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted. You

Wichaet §, Fries | o=

S/gna(um'orl Consultant
____Senior Architect

e e o Title
as" /T R o 2 S . 05/31/2023
Date of Signature

Date ff Acceptance

O Plus reimbursable expenses

Project No

Date Revised 05/11/23

KLINGNER
m Return signed copy, Keep one copy







From: Michael Curry

To: Sherry Mcllravy

Subject: PLEASE Print

Date: Friday, June 2, 2023 9:32:35 AM

Attachments: 20230531 [Kaleidoscope & Mosaic School Structural Evaluations SFA[701.pdf

Mike Curry, EdD.

Chief Operations Officer/CSBO
Decatur Public School District #61
Educating for Success

(217) 462-6421 (c)

(217) 362-3021 (o)

"Travel teaches tolerance, patience, acceptance, and how to live in the moment.” -@worldlyroamer
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

To: Kyle T. Hannel

Cc: Michael Curry

Subject: RE: Board Meeting

Date: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 2:15:52 PM

Thanks. Looking forward to seeing you this evening.

From: Kyle T. Hannel <khannel@klingner.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 1:14 PM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Cc: Michael Curry <mcurry@dps61.org>
Subject: Board Meeting

Kent,

Michael Fries let me know that the special school board meeting was going to be at 5PM tonight at
the MacArthur School (1499 W Grand Ave, Decatur, IL 62522). | plan to be there to answer any
guestions the board may have about our Klingner Structural Inspection reports. If you need to get
ahold of me this afternoon/evening my cell phone # is 217-653-2796. Was just wanting to send my
cell number over to you in case the meeting location or time gets revised while | am driving to
Decatur this afternoon.

Thanks,

Kyle T. Hannel, P.E., C.W.I.
Structural Engineer
Klingner & Associates, P.C.

616 N. 24th Street | Quincy, IL 62301
Office: 217.223.3670 | Fax: 217.223.3603

www.klingner.com

Kl I N G N E n “Striving to provide excellent services which
anticipate and meet the needs of our dients and
SASSOCIATES.P.C. benefit the community™
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From: Michael J. Fries

To: Michael Curry; Kent Metzger

Cc: Kyle T. Hannel; Alan D. Lukens

Subject: RE: Decatur School District- Mosaic School Structural Evaluation Reports

Date: Thursday, June 8, 2023 11:07:11 AM

Attachments: 20230607 Mosaic School Evaluation Observations and Recommendations Report.pdf
Dr. Curry,

Attached, please find our structural evaluation observation report for the Mosaic School in Decatur,
IL. Per your request, this observation report includes our recommendations for the conditions we
observed in the observation report. The text of the observation report remains unchanged, however
we have inserted our recommendations in bold text.

If you have any questions, please let me know.

Best,
Michael

Michael J. Fries, AlIA, LEED AP
Architecture Department Director
Klingner & Associates, P.C.
Engineers — Architects — Surveyors

From: Michael J. Fries <mfries@klingner.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 11:04 AM

To: 'Michael Curry' <mcurry@dps61.org>; 'Kent Metzger' <kametzger@dps61.org>
Cc: 'Kyle T. Hannel (khannel@klingner.com)' <khannel@klingner.com>; Alan D. Lukens

<adl@klingner.com>

Subject: Decatur School District- Mosaic School Structural Evaluation Reports

Dr. Curry,

Attached, please find our structural evaluation observation report for the Mosaic School in Decatur,
IL. We will be sending the observation report for the Kaleidoscope school over this afternoon.

Best,
Michael

Michael J. Fries, AlA, LEED AP
Architecture Department Director
Klingner & Associates, P.C.

The Molengracht Plaza
604 Liberty Street, Suite 125 | Pella, 1A 50219
Office: 515.612.7402 | Cell: 641-629-9938

mfries@klingner.com | www.klingner.com
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06/07/2023

Dr. Mike Curry, COO
Decatur Public Schools #61
400 East Cerro Gordo
Decatur, IL 62523

RE: Structural Evaluation Observations and Recommendations of the Mosaic School
Building at 1499 W. Main St. in Decatur, lllinois.

Dear Dr. Curry:

On June 1, 2023, we performed a visual structural evaluation of the Mosaic School
Building at 1499 W. Main St. in Decatur, lllinois. We were informed that there were
recent concerns with the structural integrity of the north multi-story main-entrance stairs,
so the focus of our inspection and evaluation was limited to this north stair area of the
Mosaic School building. The original 2-story portion of this school building was likely
built in 1920’s and was named Dennis School. A 2-story addition was added to the east
side of the building in 1927 and a 2-story addition was added to the south side of the
school in the 1970s. Access to the existing building plans that the school district had
available were made available to us to scan so we could have a copy to aid in our
evaluation just prior to performing our inspections. The Decatur Public School District
had recently posted signage on the entrance doors of the Mosaic school building to
restrict access to the building entrance at the stair at the time of our inspection. Access
to the building and the different rooms and areas near the north main-entrance stair was
provided to us by the Decatur Public School maintenance personnel that escorted us
during our inspection.

The following are our observations and recommendations:
Foundation:

1. Prior to our site visit, previous concerns of the basement slab and foundation had
led to others drilling two small exploratory holes in the basement floor slab below
the lowest portion of the north stair. We were informed that when the holes were
drilled that only the top 1” to 1 %" portion of slab felt like hardened concrete. It
could still be observed in the drilled holes that below the top approximately 1 %2”
of slab the material was soft and appeared to be deteriorated concrete or sandy
material. While the existing original plans provided did not label the thickness of
basement slab on grade, it is more typical for a basement slab to be 4” to 5” in
thickness. The existing plans and observed layout of the stair appears to have
the bottom end of the lowest level of stair bearing on a vestibule foundation wall

www.klingnercom Quincy, L * Galesburg, IL * Carbondale, IL * Burlington, IA * Davenport, IA  Pella, IA * Columbia, MO * Hannibal, MO
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Mosaic School Building Structural Evaluation & Recommendations
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Page 2

with a footing below. Therefore, it is unlikely that any of the structural concerns
related to the north stair is related to the deteriorated basement floor slab.

Stair and Landing Superstructure:

1. The stair flight of the north stair that runs from the vestibule level up to the 15
floor level is approximately 13’-6” wide with a handrail in the middle of the stair.
The stringers are constructed out of notched out 2x12 timber members.
Excessive permanent deflection was observed on this stair flight with gaps
between the wall closed stringer and the wall mounted trim. The gap was up to
1”7 at the middle of the stringer span of the west side and up to 2" at the middle of
the stringer span of the east side. At one accessible portion below the west side
of this flight of stair we observed previous attempts to repair some of the stair
stringers using a sistered 2x4 or a sistered ripped down 2x12 stringer over a
portion of the original stringers. It also appeared that an 8” steel W-beam was
added at some time in the past was pocketed into and added brick support
pedestals on the east and west ends. The steel beam and brick pedestals were
likely not original to the building and were likely added at some time in the past to
help support the header at the top of the lower stair and north end of the 15t floor
landing joists. See attached Photos #1 thru #5.

Klingner recommends replacing or repairing the stair flight that runs from
vestibule level up to the 15t floor level. If repairing, we recommend the
stairs be raised to the original elevation and either additional supports be
added below to support the stringers at their mid-span or adequately
sistering each of the stair stringers. We do not recommend use the
basement slab to help support any stair repairs or replacements.

2. The multi-wythe brick walls on the east and west side of the vestibule and lower
stair segment had portions of brick wall that had been removed for duct
penetrations and cable penetrations. The larger duct penetrations appeared to
have a header plate added to help support the brick wall portion above but the
small single brick removals for cables did not. Some stair-step cracking
extending off the ends of the brick openings and down to the existing brick wall
door openings were observed. However, major signs of settlement or brick wall
deterioration was not observed and it is unlikely that any of the structural
concerns related to the north stair is related to the minor interior brick wall
deterioration observed. See attached Photos #6 and #7.

3. The two (2) timber column supports at the 15 floor landing that support the 2"
floor landing and stringer bearing are leaning or deflecting excessively in the
north/south direction. It appears as if these two (2) columns are approximately
6Xx6 timber posts and were likely not original to the design of the stair and support
system because they are not in the original plans or on the other middle stair
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landing level that has similar short guardrail posts. It is possible that the columns
were added at some time in the past as a repair attempt for the 2" floor landing
support header above. The columns are out of plumb excessively by
approximately 2° in the north-south direction above the guardrail posts and do
not appear to be adequately spliced or fixed to the guardrail portion of post below
the column. The bottom guardrail post portion of column has 1x boards and trim
surrounding the likely 6x6 timber post member that have splits and gaps running
vertically on the east and west sides. The splits and gaps of the west column
guardrail post surround is larger than the east column guardrail post surround.
See Photos #8 thru #10 and #12.

Klingner recommends replacing or repairing the 2" floor landing header
and sizing the new or repaired header strong enough to allow for the
removal of the two (2) existing column supports above the 15 floor landing
top of guardrail post and below the 2" floor landing header. We
recommend temporarily shoring and raising the landing back up to the
original 2" floor level until the header can be replaced or repaired. We also
recommend repairing or replacing the 15 floor landing guardrail post after
column supports are removed.

4. The bottom side of the east and west stair flight that runs from the 1%t floor up to
the middle landing was covered by plaster and lath. The plaster was missing and
heavily cracked in areas below the east and west stair flight which is likely a sign
of excessive deflections of the stair stringers or stringer header supports in the
past. See attached Photo #11.

Klingner recommends replacing or repairing the east and west stair flight
that runs from 1t floor level to the middle landing. If repairing, we
recommend the stairs be raised to the original elevation and adequately
sistering each of the stair stringers. We also recommend replacing or
repairing the middle landing header.

5. The 2" floor landing header appeared to be a 3x14 timber member that spanned
from east to west wall and was supported by the two (2) column supports below.
In an accessible portion of the west end of header it appeared that the header
was notched out for each of the 2" floor joists that pocketed into the header with
only the bottom 2” of header appearing to be continuous along the span of the
header. This 2™ floor landing appears to deflect excessively, which may have
been the reason why the column supports were likely added below it in the past.
Even with the columns below, the header support on the north end of the 2" floor
landing appears to be inadequate. See the attached Photos #12 and #13.

See similar recommendations for Observation #3 above. Additionally, due
to the similar size, span, and construction type of the stair flight that runs
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from the middle landing up to the 2" floor landing level, Klingner
recommends replacing or repairing the stair flight. If repairing, Klingner
recommends the stairs be raised to the original elevation and adequately
sistering each of the stair stringers.

6. The east and west portions of upper stair flight are each approximately 5’-0” wide
and run from the 2" floor level up to the upper level that is slightly above the 2"
floor level. The upper level and both of these upper stair and stair landings have
excessive deflection towards the middle of the stairwell or middle of header and
upper-level floor joist span. The upper stair and stair landings are permanently
deflecting at an approximately 2° slope and the doors leading to the room and
staff restroom on the north end of the upper landings are out of plumb so much
that someone has had to cut the door down to reduce the door height by up to 1”
on the non-hinge side of the doors to allow the doors to be able to swing open.
The wall on the south side of the upper landing is also deflecting near the mid-
span and the wall plaster is cracking and the decorative wood trim along the
base of the wall is splitting. While the upper-level framing spans in the east/west
direction, with no column supports below the existing header that is located at the
south end of the upper level, it appears the upper-level south header is
inadequate to support the stair landings and the wall above it. See attached
Photos #14 thru #17.

Klingner recommends replacing or repairing the upper landing header and
raising the upper landing level and wall to the original elevation. We also
recommend replacing or repairing the east and west stair flight and landing
that runs from the 2" floor level to the upper landing. If repairing, we
recommend the stairs and landing be raised to the original elevation and
adequately sistering each of the stair stringers. We recommend replacing
the doors on the upper level after all repairs/replacement and raising has
been completed.

7. One of the exposed joists of the upper level has been notched for a previous
plumbing penetration. There was also some minor existing water damage to the
nearby joists and ceiling where it appeared a previous plumbing repair had been
made. See attached Photo #18.

The observations above are limited to what was visible at the time of inspection. While
there were enough accessible or uncovered portions of the support walls, landing
framing, stair stringers, and headers to view the typical conditions of the structural
support members, the possibility exists of areas of structural deficiencies that were
covered up or were not identifiable during our visual inspection.

In our professional opinion, due to the potential safety hazard for anyone using or
occupying the space above or below the north multi-story stair and stair
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landings, Klingner recommends the Decatur Public School District continue to
restrict access to the Mosaic building north multi-story stair and areas below,
above, and adjacent to the stair until further stabilization, repairs, or replacement
of the stair can be completed. Before any staff is allowed to access the interior
portions of the school outside of the north stair area, we recommend a code
study be completed for the building to verify if there would be safe emergency
exit access locations for the staff while the north stair is inaccessible or until the
north stair has been fully repaired or replaced.

As always, if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.
Sincerely,

KLINGNER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

e TR Al v,

Kyle T. Hannel, P.E., C.W.I. Alan D. Lukens, P.E., S.E.

KTH/ADL/P:\Pella\23files\234047\14.Struct\Design\Mosaic Inspection Report.docx

C: Kent Metzger, Dir. Of Buildings and Grounds

Enclosure: Photos #1 thru #18;
Attachment #1 (Partial Building Section)
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Photo of the stair leading from vestibule up to first floor level

Description looking west showing the sag in the stair from the gap
between the wall closed stringer and wall mounted trim. 1
Date 06/01/2023

' Photo of the stair leading from
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vestibule up to first floor level

Description looking east showing the sag in the stair from the gap
between the wall closed stringer and wall mounted trim. 2
Date 06/01/2023
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Description

Photo of a previous attempted repéir to a stair stringer for
the stair leading from vestibule up to first floor level near the

west side of the stair.

Date

Description

06/01/2023

Photo of a preious ttempted repair to stair stringers for the
stair leading from vestibule up to first floor level near the

west side of the stair. 4

Date

06/01/2023
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Project Number: 23-4047

Photo of an 8" steel beam that sits just below the upper end
of the stringers for the stair leading from vestibule up to first
floor level. This beam was likely added as a repair attempt 5
sometime after the original construction.

Description

Date 06/01/2023

Photo of a vestibule wall near the corner of a ma aoof '
Description opening that has had bricks removed to run a cable thru the
multi-wythe brick wall. Brick crack steps down at edge. 6
Date 06/01/2023
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Photo of a vestibule wall above a mandoor abening that has

Description been sawcut and had bricks removed to run duct work thru

the multi-wythe brick wall. 7
Date 06/01/2023

Photo looking at east column on the 1st floor landing that is
Description supporting the 2" floor above. Note the columns are out of

P plumb approximately 2° in the north/south direction and

appears to start deflecting just above the top of guardrail. 8

Date 06/01/2023
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DPS - Mosaic School Structural Evaluation
Project Number: 23-4047

Photo looking at west column at the 1%t floor Inding. Note
the 1x boards and trim surrounding the wood columns are
split and gapped up to ¥2” from the column deflection.

Date 06/01/2023
7 .
> / :
Photo looking at east column at the 1st floor landing. Note
Description the 1x boards and trim surrounding the wood columns have
multiple splits and gaps from the column deflection/kick out.
Date 06/01/2023

10
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Photo looking at the bottom side of the stairs that run from
Description 1st floor up to the middle landing. Note the plaster board
cracking below the stair likely from the deflection of the stair 11
stringers.
Date 06/91/2023

Photo looking at th 2" floor landing and at the small stair
Description that leads to the upper level. Note the deflection of the stair

and header that supports the bottom of the upper stair. 12
Date 06/01/2023
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2

rts the

Photo looking at the 2" floor héader that suppo

Description bottom of the stair from the upper level. Note the header
was notched out for the 2" floor joists leaving only 2” of 13
wood header member below each joist notch.

Date 06/01/2023

A Photo looking at the west small stair that leads to the upper
Descriotion level. Note the stair and landing deflects down 2° towards
P the east (right of photo) and the door beyond has been 14
trimmed 1” to open.
Date 06/01/2023
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Photo looking at the east small stair that leads to the upper
level. Note the stair and landing deflects down 2° towards

Description the west (left of photo) and the door beyond has been 15
trimmed 1” to open.
Date 06/01/2023

Photo looking at the upper-level landing of the east srhall
Description stair. Note how out of plumb the door and window above

are and that the door has been trimmed down 1” to open. 16
Date 06/01/2023
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Project Number: 23-4047

Photo Iookig at the wall on the pper level betweeﬁ the
Description upper-level stair landings. Note the wall plaster cracks and

wall trim cracks from the excessive deflections of the wall. 17
Date 06/01/2023

-
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Photo 'showing a previous notch cut out of one of the upper-
D e level floor joists for plumbing penetration. Note this portion
escription - - !
of ceiling appears to have been previously opened up to fix 18
a plumbing pipe leak in the floor of the upper level.
Date 06/01/2023
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From: Michael J. Fries

To: Michael Curry; Kent Metzger

Cc: Kyle T. Hannel; Alan D. Lukens

Subject: RE: Decatur School inspections

Date: Monday, June 5, 2023 4:37:58 PM

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

Kyle on

this email). Heis in the process of completing a formal report that should be sent to you on

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
back to the floor level structural framing either. Itis possible that the 2-story building
additions on the east and west side of the 1913 building may be helping brace the 1913
building and prevent some of the east and west wall deflection and bowing below the ond
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

Subject: RE: Dennis Lab Schools - Structural Inspection Reports
Date: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 3:15:19 PM

Attachments: image003.pngq

Thank you! I will share these with Kyle.

Best,
Michael

Michael J. Fries, AlA, LEED AP
Architecture Department Director
Klingner & Associates, P.C.
Engineers — Architects — Surveyors

From: Michael Curry <mcurry@dps61.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 1:15 PM

To: Michael J. Fries <mfries@klingner.com>

Subject: FW: Dennis Lab Schools - Structural Inspection Reports
FYI

Mike Curry, EdD

Chief Operations Officer

Decatur Public School District #61
217-462-6421 (¢)

217-362-3021 (o)

“Travel teaches tolerance, patience, acceptance, and how to live in the moment.”

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>
Date: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 at 11:59 AM

To: Jason Fox <jefox@dps61.org>, Jay Marino <JJMarino@dps61.org>, Rochelle Clark <rclark@dps61.org>, Melissa
Bradford <MBradford@dps61.org>, Michael Curry <mcurry@dps61.org>, Denise Swarthout <DSwarthout@dps61.org>
Subject: Fwd: Dennis Lab Schools - Structural Inspection Reports

See below

Get Qutlook for i0OS

From: Anna Marie Ignacio <amignacio@bfwengineers.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 11:52:17 AM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Cc: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>; Heath Pederson <hpederson@bfwengineers.com>
Subject: Dennis Lab Schools - Structural Inspection Reports

Kent,

Below please find links to our structural inspections for the Dennis Lab Schools. The files were too large to attach, so please
let me know if you have issues accessing the files via the links below.

Please let us know if there are further questions or concerns at this time.

123418 - Dennis Lab Schools Kaleidoscope) Investigation Report (2023.06.20).pdf
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123418 - Dennis Lab Schools (Mosaic) Investigation Report (2023.06.20).pdf

Best,

Anna Marie Ignacio

Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.
Project Engineer I

907 Arrow Road, Suite 2

Champaign, IL 61821

217-530-4283 phone

BFW “immmes | ngf® " MARCUM 53\
R or R R I . ENGINEERING, LLC

www.bfwengineers.com » follow us: li , u:n @

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or enlity to whom they are addressed. If you have received
this amail in error please nolify the system manager, This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individeal named. If you are not the
named addresses you should not dissemninate, distribute or copy this e-mall. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you have received this e-mall by mistake
and delete this e-mall from your system. If you are not the intended reciplant you are nolified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the
cantents of this information is strictly prohibited

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This transmission is intended and restricted for use by the above addressee only. It may contain
confidential and/or privileged information exempt from disclosure under federal or state law. In the event some other person
or entity receives this transmission, said recipient is hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or duplication of this
transmission or its contents is prohibited. If you should receive this transmission in error, please notify us immediately by
replying to this e-mail or calling (217) 362-3000, delete the file from your system, and destroy any hard copies of this
transmission. Thank you. Decatur Public School District 61, Decatur, lllinois.
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From: Michael J. Fries

To: Kent Metzger

Cc: Alan D. Lukens; Kyle T. Hannel; Michael Curry

Subject: RE: Kaleidoscope - Minimum Recommended Unoccupied Space
Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 2:58:04 PM

Mike and Kent,
Thanks for your time today. Please note these email addresses above

Best,
Michael

Michael J. Fries, AlA, LEED AP
Architecture Department Director
Klingner & Associates, P.C.
Engineers — Architects — Surveyors

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 2:39 PM
To: mfries@klingner.com

Subject: FW: Kaleidoscope - Minimum Recommended Unoccupied Space

From: Phillip Holthaus <pholthaus@bfwengineers.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 7:22 AM

To: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Subject: Kaleidoscope - Minimum Recommended Unoccupied Space

Kent,

| have attached a plan of our minimum recommended unoccupied space inside and outside the building due to the
extreme bowing and leaning of the east parapet. | have also attached a pdf set of a few phots of the east parapet. It might be
a little hard to tell the extent of bowing and leaning from the photos. It is probably more noticeable in person. Please let me
know if you have any questions. Please send a zoom invite for our meeting this morning. | will need to join the call from home.

Thanks,

Phillip Holthaus, PE, SE

Bacon Farmer Workman Engineering & Testing, Inc.
Structural Engineer / Project Manager

907 Arrow Road, Suite 2

Champaign, IL 61821

217-530-4283 phone

217-530-4279 direct
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., ENGINEERING, LLC

www.bfwengineers.com + follow us: n ’ uﬂ @

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. if you have received
this email in error please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the
named addresses you should not disseminale, distribule or copy this e-mail. Pleasa notify the sender immediately by e-mail if you have recaived this e-mail by mistake
and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that disciosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the
contents of this information is strictly prohibited

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

Cc: Jeremy T. Steenhoek; Alan D. Lukens

Subject: RE: Kaleidoscope - Minimum Recommended Unoccupied Space
Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 1:22:41 PM

Mike,

Thanks for the pictures. Do you have a copy of the other structural engineer’s report? Are there any existing drawings for this
building?

Best,
Michael

Michael J. Fries, AlA, LEED AP
Architecture Department Director
Klingner & Associates, P.C.
Engineers — Architects — Surveyors

From: Michael Curry <mcurry@dps61.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 12:27 PM
To: mfries@klingner.com

Subject: Fwd: Kaleidoscope - Minimum Recommended Unoccupied Space

Get Qutlook for iOS

From: Kent Metzger <kametzger@dps61.org>

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 7:53:06 AM

To: Rochelle Clark <rclark@dps61.org>; Michael Curry <mcurry@dps61.org>; Jay Marino <JJMarino@dps61.org>
Cc: Kim Kurtenbach <kim.kurtenbach@bldd.com>; Oliver, Steve <steve.oliver@bldd.com>

Subject: FW: Kaleidoscope - Minimum Recommended Unoccupied Space

For today’s meeting

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


mailto:mfries@klingner.com
mailto:mcurry@dps61.org
mailto:jsteenhoek@klingner.com
mailto:adl@klingner.com
mailto:mcurry@dps61.org
mailto:mfries@klingner.com
https://aka.ms/o0ukef
mailto:kametzger@dps61.org
mailto:rclark@dps61.org
mailto:mcurry@dps61.org
mailto:JJMarino@dps61.org
mailto:kim.kurtenbach@bldd.com
mailto:steve.oliver@bldd.com
mailto:pholthaus@bfwengineers.com
mailto:kametzger@dps61.org

B BACON | FARMER | WORKMAN

ENGIKEERING & TESTENG, NG

NAE MARGUM 5O | @)
www.bfwengineers.com « follow us: ﬁ ’ Llﬂ [@

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received
this email in error please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the
named addresses you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immed:ately by e-mail if you have received this e-mail by mistake
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
transmission. Thank you. Decatur Public School District 61, Decatur, Illinois.



From: Michael Curry

To: Michael J. Fries

Subject: Re: Signed Short Form Agreement
Date: Friday, June 2, 2023 12:03:32 PM
Get Outlook for i0OS

From: Michael J. Fries <mfries@klingner.com>
Sent: Friday, June 2, 2023 11:39:32 AM

To: Michael Curry <mcurry@dps61.org>
Subject: RE: Signed Short Form Agreement

Mike,
Thanks for the signed agreement. Kyle should have the reports ready for you early next week.

Best,
Michael

Michael J. Fries, AlA, LEED AP
Architecture Department Director
Klingner & Associates, P.C.
Engineers — Architects — Surveyors

From: Michael Curry <mcurry@dps61.org>
Sent: Friday, June 2, 2023 10:59 AM

To: Michael J. Fries <mfries@klingner.com>
Subject: Signed Short Form Agreement

Michael,

Apologies this took a couple days to get back to you. My guy said he was very impressed by your
engineer. | am not near a scanner today, so | had to use the scanner function on my phone.

Let me know if you need a cleaner copy.

Mike

Mike Curry, EdD

Chief Operations Officer

Decatur Public School District #61
217-462-6421 (¢ )
217-362-3021(0)

“Travel teaches tolerance, patience, acceptance, and how to live in the moment.”
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This transmission is intended and restricted for use by the above
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addressee only. It may contain confidential and/or privileged information exempt from disclosure
under federal or state law. In the event some other person or entity receives this transmission, said
recipient is hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or duplication of this transmission or
its contents is prohibited. If you should receive this transmission in error, please notify us
immediately by replying to this e-mail or calling (217) 362-3000, delete the file from your system,
and destroy any hard copies of this transmission. Thank you. Decatur Public School District 61,
Decatur, lllinois.
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